VERITEC INC Form 10-Q November 15, 2010

Yes [] No []

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FOL	RM 10-Q
(Mark One)	
[x] QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION OF 1934	ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
for the quarterly period ended SEPTEMBER 30, 2010	
	OR
[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION OF 1934	ON 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE AC T
for the transition period from to	·
Commission Fi	ile Number. 0-15113
	TEC, INC. unt as Specified in its Charter)
Nevada (State or Other Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Organization) 2445 Winnetka Avenue N. Golden Valley, MN (Address of principal executive offices)	95-3954373 (IRS Employer Identification No.) 55427 (Zip Code)
Registrant's telephone number,	including area code: (763) 253-2670
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12	ed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 2 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No
•	tted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during

the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large Accelerated filer [] Accelerated filer [] Non-accelerated filer [] Smaller reporting company [X] (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [] No [X]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Sections 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court. Yes [X] No []
As of September 30, 2010, there were 15,920,088 shares of the issuer's common stock outstanding.

VERITEC, INC.

$FORM~10\text{-}Q \\ FOR~THE~FISCAL~QUARTER~ENDED~SEPTEMBER~30,~2010 \\$

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page No.
Part			4
	ITEM 1	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	4
	2	MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS	11
	ITEM 3	QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK	12
	ITEM 4	CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES	13
Part II			13
	ITEM 1	LEGAL PROCEEDINGS	13
	ITEM 1A	RISK FACTORS	13
	ITEM 2	UNREGISTERED SALE OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS	13
	ITEM 3	DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES	13
	ITEM 4	REMOVED AND RESERVED	13
	ITEM 5	OTHER INFORMATION	14
	ITEM 6	EXHIBITS	14
		SIGNATURES	14

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in Item 2 of Part I of this report include forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by forward-looking statements.

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," "potential," "proposed," "intended," or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. You should read statements that contain these words carefully, because they discuss our expectations about our future operating results or our future financial condition or state other "forward-looking" information. There may be events in the future that we are not able to accurately predict or control. Before you invest in our securities, you should be aware that the occurrence of any of the events described in this Quarterly Report could substantially harm our business, results of operations and financial condition, and that upon the occurrence of any of these events, the trading price of our securities could decline and you could lose all or part of your investment. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, growth rates, levels of activity, performance or achievements. We are under no duty to update any of the forward-looking statements after the date of this Quarterly Report to conform these statements to actual results.

PART I

ITEM 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VERITEC, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS	September 30, 2010 (Unaudited)		June 30, 2010	
Current Assets:				
Cash Accounts receivable, net of allowance of \$8,650 Notes receivable Inventories Prepaid expenses	\$	39,279\$ 21,894 60,000 4,868 23,156	31,915 76,363 3,394 29,781	
Employee advances Total Current Assets		4,337 153,534	5,037 146,490	
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$197,458 and \$190,305, respectively		37,926	45,079	
Total Assets	\$	191,460 \$	191,569	
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT				
Current Liabilities: Notes payable	\$	33,774 \$	33,069	
Notes payable, related party, net of discount of \$873 and \$7,313, respectively Accounts payable Payroll tax liabilities Accrued expenses and other current liabilities Total Current Liabilities		2,053,804 544,750 199,431 185,773 3,017,532	1,909,991 518,215 103,002 205,450 2,769,727	
Commitments and Contingencies Stockholders' Deficit:		-,,-	, ,	
Convertible preferred stock, par value \$1.00; authorized 10,000,000 shares, 276,000 shares of Series H authorized, 1,000 shares issued and outstanding Common stock, par value \$.01; authorized 50,000,000 shares, 15,920,088		1,000	1,000	
shares issued and outstanding Additional paid-in capital Accumulated deficit Total Stockholders' Deficit		159,201 14,282,063 (17,268,336 (2,826,072	159,201 14,281,531 (17,019,890) (2,578,158)	
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit	\$	191,460 \$	5 191,569	

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

VERITEC, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (Unaudited)

		Three mor Septem 2010		
License and other revenue Cost of Sales Gross Profit	\$	300,431 100,758 199,673	\$	200,641 159,459 41,182
Operating Expenses: Selling, general and administrative Research and development Total Operating Expenses		318,624 87,797 406,421		536,411 188,005 724,416
Loss from Operations		(206,748)		(683,284)
Other Income(Expense): Interest income Interest expense, including \$35,357 and \$20,530, respectively, to related parties Total Other Income(Expense)		 (41,698) (41,698)		29 (27,255) (27,226)
Net Loss	\$	(248,446)	\$	(710,460)
Loss Per Common Share, Basic and Diluted	\$	(0.02)	\$	(0.05)
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding, Basic and Diluted	15	5,920,088	1:	5,755,849

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

VERITEC, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT (Unaudited)

					Additional		
	Preferi	ed Stock	Commo	n Stock	Paid-in	Accumulated	
	Shares	Amount	Shares	Amount	Capital	Deficit	Total
Balance, July 1, 2010 Stock Based	1,000	\$1,000	15,920,088	\$159,201	\$14,281,531	\$(17,019,890)	\$(2,578,158)
Compensation Net Loss for the					532		532
Period	-	-	-	-	-	(248,446)	(248,446)
Balance, September 30, 2010	1,000	\$1,000	15,920,088	\$159,201	\$14,282,063	\$(17,268,336)	\$(2,826,072)

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

VERITEC, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Unaudited)

	Three months end 2010	ed September 30, 2009		
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES				
Net loss	\$ (248,446)	\$ (710,460)		
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used by operating				
activities:				
Depreciation	7,153	12,566		
Amortization of discount on notes payable	6,439	4,077		
Fair value of stock options issued to employees	532	34,634		
Fair value of stock issued for services		78,750		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		•		
Accounts receivable	54,469	(35,897)		
Inventories	(1,474)	2,388		
Employee advances	700	1,600		
Prepaid expenses	6,625	6,625		
Accounts payables and accrued expenses	103,287	58,810		
Interest accrued on notes payable	38,079	23,772		
interest accraca on notes payable	30,077	23,772		
Net cash used by operating activities	(32,636)	(523,135)		
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES				
Issuance of note receivable	(60,000)			
Net cash used by investing activities	(60,000)			
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES				
Proceeds from notes payable	100,000	591,500		
Payments on notes payable		(65,000)		
Net cash provided by financing activities	100,000	526,500		
NET DECREASE IN CASH	7,364	3,365		
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD	31,915	50,019		
CASH AT END OF PERIOD	\$ 39,279	\$ 53,384		
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION				
Cash paid for interest	\$ 231	\$ 177		
Cash paid for interest	ψ 231	φ 1//		
NONCASH ACTIVITIES	¢	Ф 27.500		
Issuance of common stock for accrued expenses	\$	\$ 37,500		
Debt issuance cost netted from note payable		9,250		

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements

,

VERITEC, INC.

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Three Months Ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 (Unaudited)

A. NATURE OF BUSINESS

References to the "Company" in this Form 10-Q refer to Veritec, Inc. ("Veritec") and its wholly owned subsidiaries VCode Holdings, Inc. ("VCode") and Veritec Financial Systems, Inc. ("VTFS").

The Company is primarily engaged in the development, marketing, sales and licensing of products and rendering of professional services related thereto in the following two fields of technology: (1) proprietary two-dimensional matrix symbology (also commonly referred to as "two-dimensional barcodes" or "2D barcodes"), and (2) mobile banking solutions.

The Company's two-dimensional matrix symbology technology will hereafter be referred to as the Company's "Barcode Technology", and the Company's mobile banking technology will hereafter be referred to as its "Mobile Banking Technology".

The Company's Barcode Technology was originally invented by the founders of Veritec under United States patents 4,924,078, 5,331,176, 5,612,524 and 7,159,780. Our principal licensed product to date that contains our VeriCode® Barcode Technology has been a product identification system for identification and tracking of manufactured parts, components and products. The VeriCode® symbol is a two-dimensional high data density machine-readable symbol that can contain up to approximately 500 bytes of data.

The Company's VSCode® Barcode Technology is a derivative of the VeriCode® symbol with the ability to encrypt a greater amount of data by increasing data density. The VSCode® is a data storage "container" that offers a high degree of security and which can also be tailored to the application requirements of the user. The VSCode® symbol can hold any form of binary information that can be digitized, including numbers, letters, images, photos, graphics, and the minutia for biometric information, including fingerprints and facial image data, to the extent of its data storage capacity, that are likewise limited by the resolution of the marking and reading devices employed by the user. VSCode® is ideal for secure identification documents (such as national identification cards, driver's licenses, and voter registration cards), financial cards, medical records and other high security applications.

In its PhoneCodesTM product platform, Veritec developed software to send, store, display, and read a VeriCode® Barcode Technology symbol on the LCD screen of a mobile phone. With the electronic media that provide the ease of transferring information over the web, Veritec's PhoneCodesTM technology enables individuals and companies to receive or distribute gift certificates, tickets, coupons, receipts, or engage in banking transactions using the VeriCode® technology via wireless phone or PDA.

On January 12, 2009, Veritec formed VTFS, a Delaware corporation, to bring its Mobile Banking Technology, products and related professional services to market. In May 2009 Veritec was registered by Security First Bank in Visa's Third Party Registration Program as a Cardholder Independent Sales Organization and Third-Party Servicer. As a Cardholder Independent Sales Organization, Veritec may promote and sell Visa branded card programs. As a Third-Party Servicer, Veritec provides back-end cardholder transaction processing services for Visa branded card programs on behalf of Security First Bank. As of October 2010 the Company's registration with Security First Bank terminated.

Our VeriSuiteTM card enrollment system was released in July 2009. The VeriSuiteTM system is a user friendly and cost effective solution that gives governments and businesses the ability to provide cardholders with an identity card containing Veritec's VSCode® Barcode Technology. The VeriSuiteTM system provides secure Bio-ID Cards such as citizen identification, employee cards, health benefit cards, border control cards, financial cards, and more.

The Company has a portfolio of five United States and eight foreign patents. In addition, we have seven U.S. and twenty-eight foreign pending patent applications.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States of America generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q. Accordingly, the condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required for complete financial statements.

In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three month period ended September 30, 2010, are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending June 30, 2011. The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2010 was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as of such date, but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP. For further information, refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements and footnotes thereto included in our Form 10-K as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Those estimates and assumptions include estimates for reserves of uncollectible accounts, accruals for potential liabilities and assumptions made in valuing stock instruments issued for services.

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Veritec, VCode, and VTFS. All inter-company transactions and balances were eliminated in consolidation.

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. During the three months ended September 30, 2010, the Company had a net loss of \$248,446 and used cash in operations of \$32,636. At September 30, 2010, the Company had a working capital deficit of \$2,863,998 and a stockholders' deficiency of \$2,826,072. The Company is also delinquent in payment of certain amounts due of \$199,431 for payroll taxes and accrued interest and penalties as of September 30, 2010. The Company believes its cash and forecasted cash flow from operations will not be sufficient to continue operations through fiscal 2011 without continued external investment. The Company believes it will require additional funds to continue its operations through fiscal 2011 and to continue to develop its existing projects and plans to raise such funds by finding additional investors to purchase the Company's securities, generating sufficient sales revenue, implementing dramatic cost reductions or any combination thereof. There is no assurance that the Company can be successful in raising such funds, generating the necessary sales or reducing major costs. Further, if the Company is successful in raising such funds from sales of equity securities, the terms of these sales may cause significant dilution to existing holders of common stock. The condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from this uncertainty.

C. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Net Loss per Common Share:

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) applicable to Common Stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of Common Stock outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) applicable to Common Stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if all dilutive potential common shares had been issued, using the treasury stock method. Potential common shares are excluded from the computation as their effect is antidilutive.

For the three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 the calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are the same because potential dilutive securities would have an anti-dilutive effect.

There were 6,253,328 and 2,193,946 potentially dilutive securities as of September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Concentrations

During the three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, the Company had three customers that accounted for approximately 11%, 27%, and 36% of sales in 2010, and three customers that accounted for approximately 10%, 25% and 40% of sales in 2009, respectively. No other customers accounted for more than 10% of sales in either period. As of September 30, 2010 and June 30, 2010, the Company had approximately \$6,050 (20%), \$4,200 (14%), \$7,500 (25%), \$3,000 (10%), and \$4,563 (15%) and \$23,550 (28%) and \$20,025 (24%), respectively, of accounts receivable from its major customers.

For the three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, foreign revenues accounted for 84% (81% Korea and 3% Taiwan) and 65% (52% Korea and 13% Taiwan) of the Company's total revenues respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new accounting guidance in applying the milestone method of revenue recognition to research or development arrangements. Under this guidance management may recognize revenue contingent upon the achievement of a milestone in its entirety, in the period in which the milestone is achieved, only if the milestone meets all the criteria within the guidance to be considered substantive. This standard is effective on a prospective basis for research and development milestones achieved in fiscal years, beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted; however, adoption of this guidance as of a date other than January 1, 2011 will require the Company to apply this guidance retrospectively effective as of January 1, 2010 and will require disclosure of the effect of this guidance as applied to all previously reported interim periods in the fiscal year of adoption. As the Company plans to implement this standard prospectively, the effect of this guidance will be limited to future transactions. The Company does not expect adoption of this standard to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations as it has no material research and development arrangements which will be accounted for under the milestone method.

In April 2010, the FASB issued new accounting guidance to clarify that an employee share-based payment award with an exercise price denominated in the currency of a market in which a substantial portion of the entity's equity securities trades should not be considered to contain a condition that is not a market, performance, or service condition. Therefore, an entity would not classify such an award as a liability if it otherwise qualifies as equity. The amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The Company does not expect adoption of this standard will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued new accounting guidance which requires new disclosures regarding transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, as well as requiring presentation on a gross basis of information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in Level 3 fair value measurements. The guidance also clarifies existing disclosures regarding level of disaggregation, inputs and valuation techniques. The new guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009. Disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. As this guidance requires only additional disclosure, there should be no impact on the financial statements of the Company upon adoption.

In October 2009, a new accounting consensus was issued for multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. This consensus amends existing revenue recognition accounting standards. This consensus provides accounting principles and application guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the arrangement should be separated and the consideration allocated. This guidance eliminates the requirement to establish the fair value of undelivered products and services and instead provides for separate revenue recognition based upon management's estimate of the selling price for an undelivered item when there is no other means to determine the fair value of that undelivered item. Previously the existing accounting consensus required that the fair value of the undelivered item be the price of the item either sold in a separate transaction between unrelated third parties or the price charged for each item when the item is sold separately by the vendor. Under the existing accounting consensus, if the fair value of all of the elements in the arrangement was not determinable, then revenue was deferred until all of the items were delivered or fair value was determined. This new approach is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The Company is in the process of evaluating whether the adoption of this standard will have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the AICPA, and the SEC did not or are not believed by management to have a material impact on the Company's present or future consolidated financial statements.

D. NOTES RECEIVABLE

In August 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with Global TV, Inc. for the purpose of forming a strategic partnership to raise capital for the implementation and promotion of private-labeled debit card programs. The Company is initially to make funds available to Global TV in the amount of \$70,000 and would make another \$30,000 available to Global TV if the Company successfully raises \$2,000,000 in additional capital.

As such, during the quarter ended September 30, 2010, the Company entered into various short-term notes receivable agreements totaling \$60,000 with Global TV at an interest rate of 10% due September through October 2010, secured by certain fixed and other assets of Global TV.

E. NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable consist of the following:

		eptember 30, 2010	June 30, 2010
Convertible notes payable (includes \$110,546 and \$107,897, respectively, to non-related parties), unsecured, interest at 8%, due September 2010 through November 2010. The principal and accrued interest are convertible at a conversion price of \$0.30. The principal and interest is due immediately on the event of default or change of control. The holders also received warrants to purchase one share of common stock for every \$2 of investment. The Company recorded a \$20,981 discount on the notes payable for the value of the warrants issued. The discount is being amortized over the term of the notes payable. The unamortized discount as of September 30, 2010 and June 30, 2010, was \$369 and \$3,758, respectively. \$507,804 is currently in default.	\$	(NAUDITED) 618,350	\$603,871
Convertible notes payable to related parties, unsecured, principal and interest are			
convertible into common stock at \$0.30 to \$0.33 per share, interest at 8 % to 10%, due July to November 2010. \$674,606 is currently in default.		690,651	578,166
Convertible note payable to related party, secured by the Company's intellectual property, principal and interest are convertible into common stock at \$0.25 per share subject to board of directors' approval, interest at 8%. The note was due November 2, 2010 and is now in default.		214,357	208,814
Note payable to related party, secured by the Company's intellectual property, interes at 8% due August 2010 and is now is default.	t	418,022	408,732
Notes payable to related parties, unsecured, interest at 0% to 8%, due on demand.		112,424	110,408
Note payable, unsecured, interest at 10%, due January 2010 and is now in default.		21,666	21,162
Convertible note payable, unsecured, principal and interest are convertible into common stock at \$0.30 per share subject to board of directors' approval, interest at 8%, due January 2011.		10,585	10,384
Convertible note payable, unsecured, principal and interest are convertible into common stock at \$1.00 per share subject to board of directors' approval, interest at 8% due November 2009 and is now in default.		1,523	1,523
Total	\$	2,087,578	\$1,943,060

For the purposes of Balance Sheet presentation notes payable have been presented as follows:

September	
30,	June 30
2010	2010

Notes payable	\$33,774	\$33,069
Notes payable, related party	2,053,804	1,909,991
	\$2,087,578	\$1,943,060

F. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock options

The Company has agreements with certain of its employees and independent contractor consultants that provide grants of options to purchase the Company's common stock.

A summary of stock options as of September 30, 2010 and for the three months then ended is as follows:

	Number of Shares	Weighted - Average Exercise Price
Outstanding at June 30, 2010	814,249	\$ 0.47
Granted	10,000	\$ 0.13
Outstanding at September 30, 2010	824,249	\$ 0.47
Exercisable at September 30, 2010	814,249	\$ 0.47

The weighted-average remaining contractual life of stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2010 is 3.6 years.

The weighted-average fair value of options granted for the three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009 was \$0.14 and \$0.34, respectively. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the three months ended September 30, 2010, was determined using a black scholes pricing model with the following assumptions: expected term of 3 years, volatility of 185% and discount rate of 1.80%.

Stock-based compensation expense was \$532 and \$34,634 during the three months ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. As of September 30, 2010, there was \$1,014 of unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be recognized over the next four quarters. The options had no intrinsic value as of September 30, 2010.

Warrants

In connection with the issuance of certain convertible notes payable, the Company has outstanding 275,000 warrants to acquire its common stock at an exercise price of \$2 per share. The warrants expire in 2014. The warrants have no intrinsic value at September 30, 2010.

G. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the quarter ended September 30, 2010, the Company borrowed \$4,200 from Van Tran, the current Company CEO and a Board member, at 8% annual interest, due on demand. The note is convertible into the Company's common stock at the rate of one share for every \$0.30 of indebtedness.

ITEM 2 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations – September 30, 2010 compared to September 30, 2009

We had a net loss of \$248,446 for the three months ended September 30, 2010, compared to a net loss of \$710,460 for the three months ended September 30, 2009.

Revenue

License and other revenues are derived from our product identification systems sold principally to customers in the LCD monitor industry. For the three months ended September 30, 2010, license and other revenue was \$300,431 compared to \$200,641 for the three months ended September 30, 2009, an increase of \$99,790. The license and other revenue increases are attributable to the increase in demand for LCD screens during the quarter. Revenues from the LCD market remain unpredictable as they are generated when customers open new production facilities or update production equipment; however, in the three months ended September 30, 2010, the Company experienced a slight increase in demand for product identification product licenses in the LCD industry. The increase is a result of various customers purchasing more in the current period than in the three months ended September 30, 2009.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of sales for the three months ended September 30, 2010 totaled \$100,758 and for the three months ended September 30, 2009, cost of sales were \$159,459, a decrease of \$58,701. The decrease in cost of sales for the three months ended September 30, 2010, was the result of a reduction in the cost of maintaining the Company's data processing center for its mobile banking operations, which made up 77% of the total cost of sales in the current period compared to 88% in the quarter ended September 30, 2009. This decrease was partially offset by increases in the cost of licenses sold during the quarter and maintenance services, which increased by \$3,754 over the three months ended September 30, 2009.

Operating Expenses

Research and development expense for the three months ended September 30, 2010, totaled \$87,797 versus \$188,005 for the three months ended September 30, 2009. The decrease of \$100,208 was principally the result of reduction in consulting costs that decreased by \$49,345 and payroll and related costs that decreased by \$50,863.

Sales and marketing expense for the three months ended September 30, 2010 were \$41,842 compared to \$48,931 for the three months ended September 30, 2009, a decrease of \$7,089. For the three months ended September 30, 2010, the Company had one direct sales staff person. The Company, for the three months ended September 30, 2010, paid out commissions of \$706 compared to \$162 for the three month period ended September 30, 2009.

General and administrative expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2010 were \$276,782 compared to \$487,480 for the three months ended September 30, 2009, a reduction of \$210,698 over the three months ended September 30, 2009. The reduction was mainly the result of decreases in most of the expenditures for the three months ended September 30, 2010, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2009. Payroll expense

decreased by \$36,215 due to reduction in staff levels. The Company also saw decreases of \$112,852 in stock compensation, \$9,604 in health insurance cost, \$95,050 in professional fees, \$9,193 in consulting expense, and \$17,129 in public company fees over the three months ended September 30, 2009. These decreases were offset by increases in penalty and interest of \$29,901 and travel expense of \$4,004.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest income for the three months ended September 30, 2010 was \$0 compared to \$29 for the three months ended September 30, 2009 a decrease of \$29. The decrease was a result of the Company's need for cash to fund its operations, thus drawing down cash reserves and in doing so earning no interest. Interest expense for the three months ended September 30, 2010, was \$41,698 compared to \$27,255 in the same period ended September 30, 2009. The increase was the result of issuance of notes payable.

Liquidity

Our increase in cash and cash equivalent to \$39,279 at September 30. 2010 compared to \$31,915 at June 30, 2010 was the result of \$32,636 used in operating activities; \$60,000 used in investing activities; and \$100,000 provided by financing activities. Net cash used in operations during 2010 was \$32,636 compared with \$523,135 used in operations during the same period in 2009. Cash used in operations during 2010 was primarily due to the net loss in the period offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses. Net cash used in investing activities of \$60,000 during 2010 compared with \$0 during 2009 was primarily the result of payment on note receivable. Net cash provided by financing activities of \$100,000 during 2010 was due to proceeds from notes payable of \$100,000. During the same period in 2009, the net cash provided by financing activities of \$526,500 was from net proceeds from notes payable.

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a going concern. During the three months ended September 30, 2010, the Company had a net loss of \$248,446 and used cash in operations of \$32,636. At September 30, 2010, the Company had a working capital deficit of \$2,863,998 and a stockholders' deficiency of \$2,826,072. The Company is also delinquent in payment of certain amounts due of \$199,431 for payroll taxes and accrued interest and penalties as of September 30, 2010. The Company's operations are currently being supported by borrowings from affiliated parties, and its cash and forecasted cash flow from operations will not be sufficient to continue operations without continued external investment. The Company believes it will require additional funds in the near future to continue its operations and to continue to develop its existing projects and plans to raise such funds by finding additional investors to purchase the Company's securities, generating sufficient sales revenue, implementing further dramatic cost reductions or any combination thereof. There is no assurance that the Company can be successful in raising such funds, generating the necessary sales or reducing major costs. Further, if the Company is successful in raising funds from sales of equity securities, the terms of these sales may cause significant dilution to existing holders of common stock. The condensed consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that may result from this uncertainty.

If the Company is not successful in raising additional funds, generating sufficient revenues or implementing sufficient cost reductions, the Company may be forced to suspend or discontinue its operations or seek relief from its debt obligations under the United States Bankruptcy Code. Any of these actions is likely to result in a common stockholder's loss of his or her complete investment in the Company's common stock.

Subsequent to the quarter ended September 30, 2010, the Company borrowed \$4,200 from Van Tran, a related party and the Company's current CEO and Board member, at 8% annual interest, due on demand. The note is convertible into the Company's common stock at the rate of one share for every \$0.30 of indebtedness.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new accounting guidance in applying the milestone method of revenue recognition to research or development arrangements. Under this guidance management may recognize revenue contingent upon the achievement of a milestone in its entirety, in the period in which the milestone is achieved, only if the milestone meets all the criteria within the guidance to be considered substantive. This standard is effective on a prospective basis for research and development milestones achieved in fiscal years, beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted; however, adoption of this guidance as of a date other than January 1, 2011 will require the Company to apply this guidance retrospectively effective as of January 1, 2010 and will require disclosure of the effect of this guidance as applied to all previously reported interim periods in the fiscal year of adoption. As the Company plans to implement this standard prospectively, the effect of this guidance will be limited to future transactions. The Company does not expect adoption of this standard to have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations as it has no material research and development arrangements which will be accounted for under the milestone method.

In April 2010, the FASB issued new accounting guidance to clarify that an employee share-based payment award with an exercise price denominated in the currency of a market in which a substantial portion of the entity's equity securities trades should not be considered to contain a condition that is not a market, performance, or service condition. Therefore, an entity would not classify such an award as a liability if it otherwise qualifies as equity. The amendments are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2010. The Company does not expect adoption of this standard will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued new accounting guidance which requires new disclosures regarding transfers in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements, as well as requiring presentation on a gross basis of information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in Level 3 fair value measurements. The guidance also clarifies existing disclosures regarding level of disaggregation, inputs and valuation techniques. The new guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009. Disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010. As this guidance requires only additional disclosure, there should be no impact on the financial statements of the Company upon adoption.

In October 2009, a new accounting consensus was issued for multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements. This consensus amends existing revenue recognition accounting standards. This consensus provides accounting principles and application guidance on whether multiple deliverables exist, how the arrangement should be separated and the consideration allocated. This guidance eliminates the requirement to establish the fair value of undelivered products and services and instead provides for separate revenue recognition based upon management's estimate of the selling price for an undelivered item when there is no other means to determine the fair value of that undelivered item. Previously the existing accounting consensus required that the fair value of the undelivered item be the price of the item either sold in a separate transaction between unrelated third parties or the price charged for each item when the item is sold separately by the vendor. Under the existing accounting consensus, if the fair value of all of the elements in the arrangement was not determinable, then revenue was deferred until all of the items were delivered or fair value was determined. This new approach is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. The Company is in the process of evaluating whether the adoption of this standard will have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB (including its Emerging Issues Task Force), the AICPA, and the SEC did not or are not believed by management to have a material impact on the Company's present or future consolidated financial statements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Stock-Based Compensation:

The Company periodically issues stock options and warrants to employees and non-employees in capital raising transactions, for services and for financing costs. Stock-based compensation for employees is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense over the requisite service period. Options vest and expire according to terms established at the grant date. The value of the stock compensation to non-employees is based upon the measurement date as determined at either a) the date at which a performance commitment is reached, or b) at the date at which the necessary performance to earn the equity instruments is complete.

We estimate volatility and forfeitures based upon historical data. As permitted by the authoritative guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, we use the "simplified" method to determine the expected life of an option due to the Company's lack of sufficient historical exercise data to provide a reasonable basis, which is a result of the relative high turnover rates experienced in the past for positions granted options. All of these variables have an effect on the estimated fair value of our share-based awards.

Revenue Recognition:

The Company accounts for revenue recognition in accordance with SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101 "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements" and related amendments. Revenues for the Company are classified into four separate products; license revenue (Veritec's Multi-Dimensional matrix symbology), hardware revenue, identification card revenue, and debit card revenue. Revenues from licenses, hardware, and identification cards are recognized when the product is shipped and collection is reasonably assured. The process typically begins for license and hardware revenue with a customer purchase order detailing its hardware specifications so the Company can import its software into the customer's hardware. Once importation is completed, if the customer only wishes to purchase a license, the Company typically transmits the software to the customer via the Internet. Revenue is recognized at that point. If the customer requests both license and hardware products, once the software is imported into the hardware and the process is complete, the product is shipped and revenue is recognized at time of shipment. Once the software and/or hardware are either shipped or transmitted, the customers do not have a right of refusal or return. Under some conditions, the customers remit payment prior to the Company having completed importation of the software. In these instances, the Company delays revenue recognition and reflects the prepayments as customer deposits.

The process for identification cards begins when a customer requests, via the Internet, an identification card. The card is reviewed for design and placement of the data, printed and packaged for shipment. At the time the identification cards are shipped and collection is reasonably assured, revenue is recognized.

The Company, as a processor and a distributor, recognizes revenue from transaction fees charged cardholders for the use of its issued mobile debit cards. The fees are recognized on a monthly basis after all cardholder transactions have been summarized and reconciled with third party processors.

ITEM 3 QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

A smaller reporting company is not required to provide the information required by this Item 3.

ITEM 4 CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered by this report. It was concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were not effective because certain deficiencies involving internal control constituted material weaknesses as discussed below. The material weaknesses identified did not result in the restatement of any previously reported financial statements or any other related financial disclosures, nor does management believe that it had any effect on the accuracy of our financial statements for the current reporting period.

The material weaknesses relate to limited transitional oversight from the audit committee on the external financial reporting process and internal control over financial reporting and lack of segregation of duties. Under the segregation of duties issues, the CFO was the sole preparer of the financial statements and periodic SEC reports with limited separate independent detailed review to prevent material errors. Also the CEO has had authority to enter into significant contracts, as well as authority to sign checks, which could result in material fraud.

In order to mitigate these material weaknesses to the fullest extent possible, the Company has assigned its audit committee with oversight responsibilities. Financial statements, periodic SEC reports and monthly bank statement and imaged checks are continuously reviewed by the CFO and CEO/Executive Chair. In addition all significant contracts are now being reviewed and signed off by the Company's board of directors in conjunction with the CEO/Executive Chair.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Other than the changes described in the preceding paragraph, there have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter to which this report relates that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II

ITEM 1 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are subject to various legal proceedings from time to time in the ordinary course of business, none of which are required to be disclosed under this Item 1.

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

A smaller reporting company is not required to provide the information required by this Item.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALE OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

None

ITEM 3 DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

The Company is in default on its various notes payable totaling \$1,837,978 representing principal and accrued interest as of the date of filing this report.

ITEM 4 REMOVED AND RESERVED

ITEM 5 OTHER INFORMATION

None

ITEM 6 EXHIBITS

- 31.1 CEO Certification required by Rule 13a14(a)/15d14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, filed herewith.
- 31.2CFO Certification required by Rule 13a14(a)/15d14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, filed herewith.
- 32.1 Veritec, Inc. Certification of CEO/Executive Chair pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. §1350), filed herewith.
- 32.2 Veritec, Inc. Certification of CFO pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. §1350), filed herewith.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

VERITEC, INC.

By /s/ Van Tran November 3, 2010

Van Tran

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Chairman of the

Board

(Principal Executive Officer)

By /s/ John Quentin November 3, 2010

John Quentin

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)